
CITY OF MOLALLA
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA

Civic Center | 315 Kennel Avenue
Wednesday, September 10, 2025 | 7:00 PM

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE

2. ROLL CALL

3. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 27, 2025
B. City Council Meeting Minutes - August 27, 2025

4. PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, CEREMONIES
A. Swearing-In Ceremony - Newly Appointed Councilor Bisenius
B. Proclamation No. 2025-01: Fallen City of Molalla K-9 Peace Officer

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. Ordinance No. 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by Allowing Fueling Stations in the

Central Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards

7. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
A. Ordinance No. 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by Allowing Fueling Stations in the

Central Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards

8. GENERAL BUSINESS
A. Ordinance No. 2025-09: RV Parking on Public Streets

9. STAFF COMMUNICATION

10. COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

11. ADJOURN

 
NOTICE: City Council will hold this meeting in-person and through video Live-Streaming on the City's Facebook
Page and YouTube Channel. Written comments may be delivered to City Hall or emailed to
recorder@cityofmolalla.com. Submissions must be received by 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.

This institution is an equal opportunity employer.

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

1

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityofmolalla/2ff82f7ca8af9e121c776e2b188382220.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityofmolalla/b1acccf4d1ddb13a4caddde580ab70740.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityofmolalla/dee06e1df0aa94b27d04c31ec6e4f72e0.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityofmolalla/65a52b4c2a60d7f12d2a49671d45c2ab0.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/cityofmolalla/ad937ac7a334995ba76ca2cbc33c83ca0.pdf


CITY OF MOLALLA
 

Staff Report
 

Agenda Category: CONSENT AGENDA
 

Agenda Date: Wednesday, September 10, 2025
Submitted by: Christie Teets, City Recorder
Approved by: Dan Huff, City Manager
 
SUBJECT: Work Session Meeting Minutes - August 27, 2025
 
ATTACHMENTS:
08.27.2025 WS Meeting Minutes.pdf

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3587435/3a_08.27.2025_WS__Meeting_Minutes.v1.pdf


 

City Council – Work Session Meeting Minutes – August 27, 2025                                                                    Page 1 of 1 

City of Molalla 
City Council - Work Session 
Minutes – August 27, 2025 
Molalla Civic Center | 315 Kennel Ave. | Molalla, OR 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
The Molalla City Council Work Session of August 27, 2025 was called to order by Mayor Scott Keyser at 6:00pm. 
 
COUNCIL ATTENDANCE        
Present: Mayor Scott Keyser, Council President Eric Vermillion, Councilor Leota Childress, Councilor Terry Shankle, 
Councilor Doug Gilmer, and Councilor Martin Bartholomew. 
 
COUNCIL CANDIDATES 
Corrinne Thomas-McCloud, Kevin ‘KC’ Bisenius, Regina Sheaves, Shane Kelley, Steven Roberts, and Tera Woosley. 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

A. Application for Appointment - Candidate Interviews 
 

The Molalla City Council held interviews for the six candidates seeking appointment to fill a vacant Council position by 
RaeLynn Botsford. The candidates answered questions about their understanding of City Council roles, group decision-making 
processes, and the City's strengths and challenges, economic health awareness, and time commitments. Common themes 
emerged around managing rapid growth while preserving small-town character, supporting local businesses, addressing 
infrastructure needs, and community engagement. Several candidates emphasized the importance of listening to diverse 
community voices and working collaboratively. Councilor Shankle clarified to all candidates that the School District operates 
separately from City government.  
 

Each candidate concluded with personal statements about why they wanted to serve, with many citing desires to guide 
responsible growth and give back to the community. The Council planned to make an appointment during the evenings Regular 
Session and a Swearing-In Ceremony scheduled for September 10th. 
 

The Mayor acknowledged the difficult appointment process noting Council represents about 10,000 residents in choosing one 
person from six qualified candidates. He praised all candidates' performance and encouraged them to run in next year's election, 
highlighting the appointed seat only lasts until the end of (2026) next year. Councilor Shankle and Council President Vermillion 
echoed the message noting the Council has not had such a rich pool of qualified candidates. The Council revealed three seats 
would be open in the upcoming election, with two current members at term limits. Council encouraged candidates to stay 
engaged through various committees (Planning Commission, Budget Committee, etc) while preparing for the election.  
 

City Recorder, Christie Teets encouraged candidates to monitor the City Website for Council Election information in the future, 
and also shared there are Budget Committee positions that will open in February 2026, and expressed optimism in receiving 
applications from present candidates for those roles; stressing multiple pathways for civic involvement. 
 

 

For the complete video account of the City Council Meeting, please go to YouTube 
City of Molalla | Oregon – August 27, 2025 

 
ADJOURN 
Mayor Keyser adjourned the Work Session at 6:49 PM. 
 
         ________________________________ 
         Scott Keyser, Mayor     
 
 
PREPARED BY:       ATTEST:  
 
 
________________________________     ________________________________  
Crystal Robles, Deputy City Recorder      Christie Teets, CMC - City Recorder 
 
 

3

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NimDSIXI56Q
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NimDSIXI56Q


CITY OF MOLALLA
 

Staff Report
 

Agenda Category: CONSENT AGENDA
 

Agenda Date: Wednesday, September 10, 2025
Submitted by: Christie Teets, City Recorder
Approved by: Dan Huff, City Manager
 
SUBJECT: City Council Meeting Minutes - August 27, 2025
 
ATTACHMENTS:
08.27.2025 CC Meeting Minutes.pdf
Public Comment.J Newland.pdf
Public Comment.K Hodgkinson.pdf

4

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3587445/3b_08.27.2025_CC_Meeting_Minutes.v1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3587318/Re__Parks_Committee_Resignation.J_Newland.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3587332/Public_Comment.K_Hodgkinson.pdf


 

City Council – Regular Session Meeting Minutes – August 27, 2025                                                                    Page 1 of 4 

City of Molalla 
City Council - Regular Meeting 
Minutes – August 27, 2025 
Molalla Civic Center | 315 Kennel Ave. | Molalla, OR 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
The Molalla City Council Meeting of August 27, 2025 was called to order by Mayor Scott Keyser at 7:15pm. 
 
COUNCIL ATTENDANCE        
Present: Mayor Scott Keyser, Council President Eric Vermillion, Councilor Leota Childress, Councilor Terry Shankle, 
Councilor Doug Gilmer, and Councilor Martin Bartholomew. 
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE 
Dan Huff, City Manager; Mac Corthell, Assistant City Manager; Chris Long, Chief of Police; Christie Teets, City Recorder; 
Dan Zinder, Planning Manager; and Jessica Wirth, Community Development Technician 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Approved as presented.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes - August 13, 2025 
 

ACTION:  
Council President Vermillion moved to approve the Consent Agenda; Councilor Gilmer seconded. Motion passed 6-0. 

  AYES: Gilmer, Shankle, Childress, Vermillion, Bartholomew, Keyser 
  NAYS: None. 
        ABSTENTIONS: None. 

 
PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, CEREMONIES 

 

A. Police Facility Update  
 

Project Manager Joshua Dodson reported the Molalla Police Station construction project continues to progress on schedule for 
completion by year-end. Through July 2025, the City has spent $12 million with $9.9 million remaining approximately 45%. 
The general contractor PNC Construction has spent 67 % with $5.5 million remaining in contract. While Mr. Dodson went into 
details and savings of GMP Contingency; he shared the project was tracking well financially and noted potential unused 
contingency funds that would return to the City.  Mr. Dodson quoted an update from Jason Bragg, Project Manager, with P&C 
Construction regarding progress with interior work and exterior improvements included completed glass installation, ongoing 
landscaping with donated boulders and basalt columns, and more than half of the asphalt paving completed. Minor challenges 
included electrical gear delivery delays, lighting control components, and utility line conflicts all of which were successfully 
resolved without impacting the construction schedule. (For full conversation please refer to YouTube video minutes: 01:17:16 - 01:40:14) 
 

B. Oregon Mayor Association (OMA) Leadership Award (Medium Cities) 
 

City Manager Huff reported on his attendance at the Oregon Mayor's Association (OMA) conference in Baker City, where he 
participated in a session on improving relationships between City Managers and Mayors. During the conference, Mayor Scott 
Keyser was surprised with the Leadership Award for Mayors in medium-sized cities. Mr. Huff noted that this recognition 
continues to raise the profile of the City and expressed appreciation for Mayor Keyser’s hard work. 
 

Mayor Keyser graciously credited the Council, City staff, and community members for the achievement, noting the honor 
appeared to be the first for the City for medium-sized cities, voiced pride in the award for the City, and thanked his wife, voters, 
and the public for their support. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Jody Newland, Molalla, OR: Formally submitted her resignation from the Parks Committee, effective August 31, 2025. She 
expressed gratitude for the opportunity to serve and highlighted her commitment to providing fun parks and green spaces for the 
community and acknowledged while volunteering can be challenging and thankless work, she takes pride in her town. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Ordinance No. 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by Allowing Fueling Stations in the Central 
Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards 

 

5



 

City Council – Regular Session Meeting Minutes – August 27, 2025                                                                    Page 2 of 4 

Mayor Keyser confirmed no conflict of interest by Council, Public Hearing for Ordinance 2025-08, was opened at 7:49pm. 
 

Planning Manager Zinder, presented staff report to allow fueling stations in the C1 Central Commercial zone, responding to 
public comment received during the Economic Opportunities Analysis hearings in February 2025. The proposed ordinance 
would split the automotive category, keeping repair services restricted while allowing fueling stations in C1 subject to special 
use standards. The standards include required screening with a 5-foot landscape buffer to maintain walkability, proximity 
restrictions preventing stations on parcels where 50% or more of property lines border residential uses, exclusion from the 
Special Transportation Area (TSP) between Hart Ave and Grange Ave (based on ODOT feedback), and access/circulation 
requirements ensuring service trucks operate entirely on-site. Mayor Keyser recommended sight-obscuring fencing to protect 
surrounding privacy to a site. The ordinance aimed to increase downtown business variety while preserving pedestrian-friendly 
character, with staff recommending council adoption. 

(For full discussion, questions, and amendment recommendations please refer to YouTube video recording minutes: 01:48:49-02:06:52) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT   
 

Wendie Kellington, Kellington Law Group: Expressed support for proposed fueling station ordinance, praising constructive 
working relationship with City staff throughout the process. Mrs. Kellington specifically noted Mr. Singh owner of Center 
Market has been involved from early process and commended the City Council on having an excellent staff group. 
 

Assistant City Manager Corthell, provided clarification regarding Public Comment received from Neil Dorman with ODOT, 
explaining the comment was received early in the process related to the ordinance and noted the City took measures to address 
ODOT's concerns by incorporating Special Use Standards into the updated ordinance and resubmitted the revised document for 
comment. Since no additional comment has been received from ODOT following the resubmission, Mr. Corthell indicated 
silence constitutes possible acceptance to the updated ordinance with the incorporated standards. 
 

Mayor Keyser closed Public Hearing for Ordinance 2025-08 at 08:10pm. 
 

B. Workplan for Housing Production Strategies (HPS) Document – House Bill (HB) 2003  
 

Mayor Keyser confirmed no conflict of interest expressed by Council and moved Public Hearing for Workplan for HPS open at 8:10pm. 
 

Assistant City Manager Corthell reported House Bill 2003 required cities over 10,000 population adopt a Housing Production 
Strategy (HPS) sharing the Workplan represents the City's third attempt after Oregon Department of Land Conservation and 
Development (DLCD) remanded the second submission, despite using a DLCD-approved consultant and having a DLCD 
member participate on the Technical Advisory Committee throughout the process. Mr. Corthell articulated frustration that many 
of DLCD's comments appear unsupported by administrative rule/statute and are vague. To avoid additional taxpayer costs, staff 
intend to proceed with DLCD's offer to fund the work addressing four specific conditions outlined in the remand memo, rather 
than starting completely over. The City developed Workplan presents required revisions, if approved by Council, City will 
submit to DLCD for final approval to resolve the HPS requirements. While no Public Comments were received;  Council 
President Vermillion thanked staff for their patience and endurance in the long battle.  
 

Mayor Keyser closed Public Hearing for Workplan for Housing Production Strategies Document - HB2003 at 08:15pm. 
 
ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

A. Ordinance No. 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by Allowing Fueling Stations in the Central 
Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards 

 

Assistant City Manager Corthell provided a procedural clarification noting Council recommended a sight-obscuring fencing 
amendment to the ordinance, the ordinance would require second reading at a separate meeting.  
 

ACTION:  
Council President Vermillion moved to hold the First Reading of Ordinance 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by 
Allowing Fueling Stations in the Central Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards including the 
Sight-Obscuring Fencing Amendment; Councilor Gilmer seconded. Motion passed 6-0. 

 

 AYES: Gilmer, Shankle, Childress, Vermillion, Bartholomew, Keyser. 
 NAYS: None. 
        ABSTENTIONS: None.  

    

GENERAL BUSINESS: 
 

A. Housing Production Strategy Workplan  
 

Assistant City Manager Corthell added the Workplan was attached to the evenings Public Hearing documents as Exhibit A. 
 

ACTION:  
Councilor Childress moved to approve the Housing Production Strategy Workplan dated August 20, 2025; Council President 
Vermillion seconded. Motion passed 6-0. 

 

 AYES: Gilmer, Shankle, Childress, Vermillion, Bartholomew, Keyser. 

6



 

City Council – Regular Session Meeting Minutes – August 27, 2025                                                                    Page 3 of 4 

 NAYS: None. 
        ABSTENTIONS: None.  

 

B. Discussion – Park Community Program Committee (CPC) 
 

City Manager Huff presented a discussion to suspend the Parks CPC, explaining the item was placed on the agenda per the 
Mayor's request from a previous July meeting. He noted the CPC’s originated from the City's Vision and Action Plan as task-
specific committees that would dissolve upon completion of their objectives, citing examples of the Economic Development 
and Police Building Committees that successfully followed the model. Mr. Huff recognized Park CPC's effective fundraising 
efforts, which have provided gap funding for projects like the Clark Park Pavilion, but emphasized the City's current policy is to 
hold off on new park projects until sustainable revenue is identified. City Manager Huff clarified discussion was not a criticism 
of the committee's success. 
 

City Manager Huff clarified the City cannot provide advice on establishing nonprofit status, noting the CPC has discussed 
pursuing 501(c)(3) status which would allow them to operate independently. Recorder Teets shared the City can accept direct 
park donations through an established fund and provide receipts but cannot serve as a financial clearinghouse, however, the City 
would continue to accept direct donations through existing process. (For full discussion please refer to YouTube video recording minutes: 
02:18:55-02:54:45) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Jody Newland, Molalla, OR: expressed concern over the potential dissolution of the Parks Committee without prior 
consultation. She proposed cost-saving options such as preparing minutes, meeting in public spaces, and creating their own 
promotional materials.  
 

Kristy Hodgkinson and Nicole Jung, Molalla, OR: Parks CPC Chair Vice Chair expressed surprise at learning of the possible 
committee dissolution secondhand, questioned the staff reports estimate of monthly staff hours, and requested a detailed 
breakdown of cost. They argued that the dissolution would undo years of progress and community recognition further asked for 
the opportunity to rebuild CPC relationship with staff and continue serving the community. 
 

Sara Lynn Pavey, Molalla, OR: praised the Parks CPC for fostering transparency and engagement but noted its current 
structure is unsustainable and nonprofit status not feasible. She urged the City to support volunteers in continuing their work 
through cleanups, sponsorships, and outreach, stressing that parks remain vital and community members remain committed. 
 

ACTION:  
Council President Vermillion made a motion to suspend Parks CPC until further notice. No second, therefore motion failed.   

 
C. Appointment to City Council  

 

City Recorder Teets provided instructions for scoring candidates using a scale where one (1) represented the lowest score and 
four (4) represented the highest score. Council members were directed to provide one overall score per candidate.  
 

ACTION:  
Mayor Keyser made a motion to appoint candidate KC Bisenius to Molalla City Council; Council President Vermillion 
seconded. Motion passed 6-0.  

 

 AYES: Gilmer, Shankle, Childress, Vermillion, Bartholomew, Keyser 
 NAYS: None. 
        ABSTENTIONS: None.  

 
STAFF COMMUNICATION 
 

• Dan Zinder, Planning Manager: Excitedly shared a new Associate Planner had been hired and the team was eager to 
have her onboard.   

• Jessica With, Community Development Technician: No Report.  
• Chris Long, Chief of Police: Reported the Police Department has two officers currently in field training and expected 

to complete training by October. The department has a Records Specialist in background processing for hiring while 
still actively recruiting one additional police officer. Chief Long expressed excitement about the outstanding 
construction progress at the new Police Department and confirmed the hiring of former Officer Jennifer Scott, who 
retired from the Molalla Police Department and has returned to serve as the Department's Evidence Technician. 

• Christie Teets, City Recorder: Reminded Council members that registration for the League of Oregon Cities 
Conference is open, with the conference scheduled for October at Portland Marriott downtown waterfront. Ms. Teets 
thanked Jessica Wirth for joining the evening's meeting, noting that she would be covering for Deputy City Recorder 
and City Recorder during their attendance at the OAMR conference in late September. 

• Mac Corthell, Assistant City Manager: Reported that there are no major issues with ongoing City projects, which he 
noted as positive news. He indicated staff continues working through Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) matters and 
Housing Production Strategy until completion.  

7



 

City Council – Regular Session Meeting Minutes – August 27, 2025                                                                    Page 4 of 4 

• Dan Huff, City Manager: Noted nothing further to add.  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
• Councilor Bartholomew noted he continues to share Library events and highlighted possibility of looking for a Game 

Master for the Library’s Dungeons and Dragons events.  
• Councilor Gilmer had no report.  
• Councilor Shankle had no report. 
• Councilor Childress reported another successful Celebrate Molalla, marking the seventh actual event held over eight 

years and thanked numerous volunteers who assisted with setup and teardown, as well as the core organizing team 
consisting of Terry Shankle, Roxy Smith, Pamela Lucht, Christy Burns, and Victor Plottner. Plans for next year include 
exploring ways to move the event completely into shaded tree areas to provide relief from heat. 

• Council President Vermillion, shared his experience helping with Celebrate Molalla setup and teardown, noting the 
hot weather conditions and acknowledging Mr. Corthell as a "rock star". He reminded the community that school starts 
the Tuesday after Labor Day and urged caution around children and buses. He congratulated Mr. Bisenius on 
appointment and concluded with praise for Mayor Keyser’s leadership award from the OMA, describing it as a 
tremendous achievement for both the Mayor and the community. 

• Mayor Keyser, reported on the successful C4 (Clackamas County Coordinating Committee) conference attended with 
Council President Hensley, where rural cities like Molalla finally gained recognition at the table alongside larger metro 
cities with greater tax resources. He also discussed the OMA conference in Baker City, where City Manager Huff 
participated in a presentation on Mayor-City Manager relationships. The Mayor expressed pride in the Police 
Department's handling of recent difficult calls thanking all responding agencies. He congratulated newly appointed KC 
Bisenius, expressing anticipation for working together. 

 

For the complete video account of the City Council Meeting, please go to YouTube 
City of Molalla | Oregon – August 27, 2025 

 
ADJOURN 
Mayor Keyser adjourned the meeting at 9:15 PM. 
 
 
         ________________________________ 
         Scott Keyser, Mayor     
 
 
PREPARED BY:       ATTEST:  
 
 
________________________________     ________________________________  
Crystal Robles, Deputy City Recorder      Christie Teets, CMC - City Recorder 
 
 
 
  
Attachments: 
 

• ORD2025-08: Fueling Stations in the C-1 Central Commercial Zone Presentation  
• Public Comment: Jody Newland 
• Public Comment: Kristy Kodgkinson 

8

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NimDSIXI56Q
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NimDSIXI56Q


From: Jody Newland
To: Christie Teets
Subject: Re: Parks Committee Resignation
Date: Wednesday, August 27, 2025 5:36:02 PM

Hi Mayor, City Council, and City Staff, 

I just wanted to come in person to turn in my official resignation from our park committee.

 I want to say thank you for allowing me to serve long enough to pass on the baton
to the able leadership of Kristy, our chair, and Nicole, our co-chair.

I greatly value fun parks and green spaces for our community to gather and play in.
I understand the challenge of working within a budget and I feel that the fundraising
we have been a part of has honored the fact that Molalla community members have
a budget as well. Not all members of our community can afford more taxes and
fees, but many have supported our fundraising efforts as they were able, because
they appreciated our willingness to do things the old-fashioned way: giving our time,
effort, and energy to back something we feel passionate about. I hope this spirit of
community in Molalla never goes away even as it grows.

Volunteering is hard work, and sometimes quite thankless. I know sometimes my
hubby hasn’t appreciated the level of pay it brings, but it makes me proud to say
that I’ve been part of loving my town.

I officially resign as of the end of this month 8/31/2025. 

Thank you, 
Jody Newland 

9

mailto:newlandfamilymail@gmail.com
mailto:cteets@cityofmolalla.com


10



11



CITY OF MOLALLA
 

Staff Report
 

Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS
 

Agenda Date: Wednesday, September 10, 2025
Submitted by: Dan Zinder, Senior Planner
Approved by: Dan Huff, City Manager
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by Allowing Fueling Stations in the Central
Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards
 
RECOMMENDATION/RECOMMENDED MOTION:
Recommended Action: Hold Public Hearing for Ordinance No. 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by
Allowing Fueling Stations in the Central Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards
 
BACKGROUND:

During the public comment period for the City’s recently adopted Economic Opportunities Analysis, the City
received a request advising that Council revisit the prohibition on fueling stations in the C-1 Zone. Compelled by
the testimony, Council advised that the City include the guidance to revisit fueling station allowance in the
Development Code Concepts guidance memo prepared in conjunction with the Economic Opportunities
Analysis.  

In a Council Work Session on April 9, 2025, Council considered the advantages and drawbacks of allowing fueling
stations in the C-1 Zone and gave Staff guidance to prepare an ordinance that would allow fueling stations in the
C-1 Zone subject to Special Use Standards considering setbacks, screening, access, and proximity to residential
uses. 

In accordance with this guidance, Ordinance 2025-08 modifies the Development Code by:  

1. Separating “Automotive Fueling Stations” from “Automotive Service and Repair…” uses in the
Molalla Municipal Code (MMC) Table 17-2.2.030 Uses Allowed By Zoning District . Permitted uses
for the “Automotive Service and Repair…” use classification remain permitted only in the M-1
Light Industrial and C-2 General Commercial zones. The “Automotive Fueling Stations” use
classification remains permitted in the M-1 and C-2 zones and would also be permitted subject
to special use standards in the C-1 Central Commercial zone.

2. Creating a new special use standards section under the Molalla Municipal Code subsection
heading 17-2.3.230.

 
Note: In response to Council comments from the August 27, 2025 meeting, proposed Special Use
Standards regarding screening requirements, have been revised to reflect that fencing between fueling
stations and should be site-obscuring and that the requirements only apply to side and rear yards. 
 

12



CITY OF MOLALLA
 

Staff Report
 

Agenda Category: ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
 

Agenda Date: Wednesday, September 10, 2025
Submitted by: Christie Teets, City Recorder
Approved by: Dan Huff, City Manager
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by Allowing Fueling Stations in the Central
Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards
 
RECOMMENDATION/RECOMMENDED MOTION:
I move to hold the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by Allowing
Fueling Stations in the Central Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards, by title only.
 
I move to adopt Ordinance No. 2025-08: Modifying the Development Code by Allowing Fueling Stations in the
Central Commercial (C-1) Zoning District, Subject to Special Use Standards.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
Ordinance No. 2025-08.Draft R1.pdf
ORD2025-08 Exhibits 1 and 2.pdf

13

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3591020/Ordinance_No._2025-08.Draft_R1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/3587286/ORD2025-08_-Exhibits_1_and_2.pdf


 

Ordinance No. 2025-08: Allowing Fueling Stations in the C-1 Central Commercial Zone Subject to Special Use Standards 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2025-08 
 

 
 

 

     AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 
     ALLOWING FUELING STATIONS IN THE (C-1) CENTRAL  
 COMMERCIAL ZONE, SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE STANDARDS 

 
WHEREAS, Molalla Municipal Code currently prohibits “Automotive Repair and 
Service” uses to be developed in the C-1 Central Commercial Zone; and  
WHEREAS, the City of Molalla Comprehensive Plan defines the City of Molalla as a 
“recreation community” and promotes the establishment of many and diverse 
commercial uses; and 
WHEREAS, the Development Code concepts guidance memo created in conjunction 
with the City’s Economic Opportunities Analysis advises that Automotive Fueling 
Stations be reconsidered in the C-1 Zone; and     
WHEREAS, Molalla City Council advised that Staff develop an ordinance to allow 
Automotive Fueling Stations in the C-1 Zone subject to Special Use Standards.  
 
Now, Therefore, the City of Molalla ordains: 

Section 1.  Molalla Municipal Code Table 17-2.2.030 and Special Use 
Standards 17-2.3.230 are hereby amended consistent with Exhibit 1, 
which is incorporated herein and adopted by reference.   

Section 2:  The findings related to this amendment, attached as Exhibit 2, are 
incorporated herein and adopted by reference. 

Section 3.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after 
enactment.  

 
The First Reading was held on August 27, 2025 with a 6-0 vote of the City Council.  
 
The Second Reading was held on September 10, 2025, and adopted by the City Council. 
 
Signed this day on the 10th of September 2025. 
 
        _________________________ 
        Scott Keyser, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________ 
Christie Teets, CMC 
City Recorder  

14



 

 

 

ORD2025-08 EXHIBIT 1 – PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT CODE AMENDMENT  

Existing Language – Black  

Proposed Language – Purple Italics 

Proposed Removals – Strikethrough 

 

Molalla Municipal Code Table 17-2.2.030 Uses Allowed by Zoning District* 

*Uses are abridged to include only applicable provisions 

 

Uses Residential Zones 
Commercial Zones and 

Industrial Zones 

Public 

Use 

Special Use 

Standards 

 R-1 R-2 R-3 R-5 C-1 C-2 M-1 M-2 PSP  

Automotive Repair and 

Service, includes fueling 

station, car wash, tire 

sales and repair or 

replacement, painting, and 

other repair for 

automobiles, motorcycles, 

aircraft, boats, RVs, 

trucks, etc. (No junking, 

salvage operations) 

N N N N N P P N N 

 

Automotive Repair and 

Service, includes car 

wash, tire sales and repair 

or replacement, painting, 

and other repair for 

automobiles, motorcycles, 

aircraft, boats, RVs, 

trucks, etc. (No junking, 

salvage operations) 

N N N N N P P N N 

 

Automotive Fueling 

Stations (excluding 

electric charging stations, 

which are addressed in 

MMC 17-3.5.030, Section 

I.)  

N N N N S P P N N 

 

 

Ch. 17-2.3 

 

 

17-2.3.230 – Automobile Fueling Stations 

New automotive fueling stations may be approved in the C-1 Central Commercial zone subject 

to design review standards of MMC and the following special use standards:  

 

A. Definition. An automobile fueling station is a retail commercial business that primarily 
provides fueling services for motor vehicles.  
 

B. Standards.  
 

1. Screening Requirements. 

15

https://ecode360.com/43126350#43126350


 

 

 

a. A landscaping buffer extending five (5) feet from the adjacent right-of-way.   
b. Screening between 3-4 feet in height that screens at least 75% of the 

abutting right-of-way frontage. Screening may be comprised of vegetative 
and/or non-living elements complying with the standards of MMC 17-3.4.040 
fences and walls.   

c. A site obscuring fence 6 to 8 feet in height must be provided between the 
service station and an abutting property on side or rear yards where a fueling 
station abuts a residential zone or an existing residential use.   

 

2. Siting Proximity To Residential Uses. Fueling stations shall not be sited on parcels 
where 50% or more of the of the subject property lines border residential uses. This 
calculation shall include properties across right-of-ways.  

 
3. Use Prohibited in Special Transportation Area. The Molalla Transportation 

Systems Master Plan identifies the corridor along OR-211/Main ST between Hart 
Avenue and Grange Avenue as a Special Transportation Area (STA). The STA is 
intended to restrict uses that rely solely on auto trips. New fueling stations shall not 
be approved on properties that have frontage along OR-211/W Main ST extending 
from the western boundary of Hart Ave to the eastern boundary of Grange Ave.  

 
4. Access and Circulation – Fueling station applications shall include a diagram 

showing ingress and egress maneuvers for the maximum length vehicle that service 
the fueling tanks. Circulation must allow for all tank servicing activities to occur onsite 
and no portion of fueling tank vehicles may extend into the right-of-way while tanks 
are being serviced.  

 
5. Electric Vehicle Charging Stations. This section does not apply to electric vehicle 

charging stations, which are regulated by MMC 17-3.5.030, Section I.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

16



 

 

 

ORD2025-08 EXHIBIT 2 – FINDINGS OF FACT  

MMC 17-4.6.020 Procedure. Except for corrections, amendments to Development 

Code Text are Legislative (Type IV).  
 

Staff Response: The proposed ordinance is an amendment to Development Code Text and as such 

follows a Legislative Type IV planning process.  

 

MMC 17-4.1.050(C) Type IV (Legislative Decisions) Procedure.  

 
Staff Response: The proposed ordinance was properly and timely noticed in accordance with all 

applicable laws and regulations as follows:   

 

1. The planning official shall notify in writing the Oregon Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD) of legislative amendments at least 

35 days before the first public hearing.  

 

Staff Response: DLCD notice was provided on June 18, 2025, exceeding the 35-day requirement 

 

2. At least 20 days, but not more than 40 days, before the date of the first 
hearing on an ordinance that proposes to amend the comprehensive plan 
or any element thereof, or to adopt an ordinance for any zone change, a 
notice shall be prepared in conformance with ORS 227.175 and mailed to: 

a.     Each owner whose property would be directly affected by the 
proposal (e.g., rezoning or a change from one Comprehensive Plan 
land use designation to another), see ORS 227.186 for instructions; 

b.     Any affected governmental agency; 

c.     Any person who requests notice in writing; and 

d.     For a zone change affecting a manufactured dwelling park, all 
mailing addresses within the park, in accordance with ORS 227.175. 

 

Staff Response: As the proposed ordinance adds uses in the C-1 zone rather than limits uses, ORS 

227.186 (Measure 56) notice to landowners is not required. The proposal does not apply to 

manufactured dwelling parks. Staff acknowledges and will meet the 20-40 day noticing requirement for 

interested parties to land use hearings and will provide notice to potentially affected governmental 

agencies including but not limited to Clackamas County Development Services, the Oregon Department 

of Land Conservation and Development, and the Oregon Department of Transportation.   

 

3. At least 10 days before the scheduled City Council public hearing date, 

public notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in 

the city and the City’s website.  
 

17



 

 

 

Staff Response: Staff acknowledges and will meeting noticing requirements by noticing in the Molalla 

Pioneer and on the City’s at least 10 days prior to the August 27th hearing.   

 

MMC 17-4.6.030 Amendments to Code; Criteria  

Planning Commission review and recommendation, and City Council approval, of 
an ordinance amending the Zoning Map, Development Code, or Comprehensive 
Plan shall be based on all of the following criteria: 

 

A. If the proposal involves an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan, the 
amendment must be consistent with the Statewide Planning Goals and 
relevant Oregon Administrative Rules; 

 

Finding: The proposal does not involve an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan.  

This criterion is not applicable.  

 

B. The proposal must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (the 
Comprehensive Plan may be amended concurrently with proposed changes 
in zoning); 

 

Finding: Fueling stations are not explicitly addressed in the Molalla Comprehensive Plan. However 

policies from Goal 9 lean towards more inclusivity for determining which businesses to include or 

exclude. To this point, the Comprehensive Plan provides this guidance in its Downtown 

Development and Policies:   

 

7. The City shall encourage and identify new businesses to occupy the CBD in order to create 

an active and vibrant district. 

8. The central business district shall provide a variety of services; cultural, recreational, social, 

professional and governmental activities. 

 

The allowance of fueling stations corresponds with the Comprehensive Plan’s emphasis on 

developing Molalla as a recreation community. Visitors coming to and from the Molalla River 

Corridor and other recreational destinations may find reason to stop and explore other businesses 

within the downtown upon refueling. This provides an opportunity to introduce new visitors to 

Molalla’s downtown community that siting all fueling stations outside of the downtown does not. 

 

Further, Molalla’s downtown core is developed to where siting of fueling stations is unlikely to 

overwhelm the downtown core and crowd out other uses. Established buildings at core locations 

such as the Molalla Ave/OR-213 intersection and other core intersections along OR-213 ensure that 

businesses other than fueling stations have the opportunity to grow and flourish.  

 

18

http://qcode.us/codes/molalla/view.php?topic=17-iv-17_4_2-17_4_2_050&frames=on


 

 

 

The proposed special use standards including buffering and screening and are designed to mitigate 

potential conflicts from other sections of the Comprehensive Plan. These sections include:  

 

Goal 9 Commercial Development, Policy 18: Commercial Development shall be attractive and pedestrian 

oriented, as required in the development code.  

 

Goal 5 Air, Water and Land Resources, Policy 7: Land use activities, which result in conflicting impacts on 

the air, land, or water, shall be separated and/or buffered to minimize the negative effects of the 

conflicting activities. 

 

Buffering and screening requirements in the proposed regulation ensure that vehicle maneuvering 

areas do not directly abut the public walkway and also provide some distance from odors and fumes 

that could arise from spillage while fueling. Additionally, the special use standards ensure that 

fueling stations are not established in areas within the C-1 zone that are primarily residential in use.  

 

This criterion is met. 

 

C. The City Council must find the proposal to be in the public interest with 
regard to community conditions; the proposal either responds to changes in 
the community, or it corrects a mistake or inconsistency in the subject plan 
or code;  

 
Finding: This proposal responds to changes in the community. With a built out downtown, 

including gas stations as a use in the C-1 zone does not put the downtown at risk of being 

overwhelmed by fueling stations at prime intersection locations. Considering available land that 

would be viable for a fueling station within the C-1 zone, allowing fueling stations is more likely to 

add variety to the downtown uses and thus add to the vitality of the district, as guided by the 

comprehensive plan.  

This criterion is met.  

 
D.   The amendment must conform to Section 17-4.6.050 Transportation Planning 

Rule Compliance 
 

Finding: This proposal does not significantly affect the Transportation Planning Rule in OAR 660-

012-0060 based on Paragraph 9 of the Rule:  

 
(9) Notwithstanding section (1) of this rule, a local government may find that an amendment to a 

zoning map does not significantly affect an existing or planned transportation facility if all of the 

following requirements are met. 

19



 

 

 

(a) The proposed zoning is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map designation 

and the amendment does not change the comprehensive plan map; 

(b) The local government has an acknowledged TSP and the proposed zoning is consistent 

with the TSP; and 

(c) The area subject to the zoning map amendment was not exempted from this rule at the 

time of an urban growth boundary amendment as permitted in OAR 660-024-0020(1)(d), or 

the area was exempted from this rule but the local government has a subsequently 

acknowledged TSP amendment that accounted for urbanization of the area. 

No zone change is proposed by the proposed ordinance and fueling stations are an appropriate 

commercial use that is accounted for by the Molalla TSP. Notably, the Special Transportation Area 

between Hart Ave and Grange Ave, which is intended to promote a walkable environment and 

restrict uses that are solely Auto reliant, is excluded from this ordinance and fueling stations will 

still be restricted therein. 

 

This criterion is met.  
 
 
 

20



CITY OF MOLALLA
 

Staff Report
 

Agenda Category: GENERAL BUSINESS
 

Agenda Date: Wednesday, September 10, 2025
Submitted by: Mac Corthell, Assistant City Manager
Approved by: Dan Huff, City Manager
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 2025-09: RV Parking on Public Streets
 
BACKGROUND:
This topic is scheduled for any additional discussion necessary from the Work Session.
 

21


	City Council Regular Meeting Agenda
	281 - Cover Page
	281 - 08.27.2025 WS  Meeting Minutes.pdf
	282 - Cover Page
	282 - 08.27.2025 CC Meeting Minutes.pdf
	282 - Public Comment.J Newland.pdf
	282 - Public Comment.K Hodgkinson.pdf
	284 - Cover Page
	285 - Cover Page
	285 - Ordinance No. 2025-08.Draft R1.pdf
	285 - ORD2025-08 Exhibits 1 and 2.pdf
	286 - Cover Page

